The Florida Trust is seeking a nationally or regionally recognized custodian bank to provide custodial banking service to the Trust.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR CUSTODIAL BANKING SERVICES FOR
FLORIDA LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT TRUST

FACC Services Group, LLC d/b/a CiviTek (the "Administrator"), on behalf of the Trustees of
Florida Local Government Investment Trust, (the "Trust") is seeking a nationally or regionally
recognized custodian bank to provide custodial banking services to the Trust.
Qualified custodian banks are invited to submit proposals to provide custodial banking services
for the Trust. Written proposals will be received electronically until 5:00 PM EST on Monday,
June 12, 2017. Proposals received after this date will not receive further consideration.

Description of the Trust
The Florida Local Government Investment Trust is organized under the laws of the State of
Florida to permit participating local governments to pool surplus funds in order to take advantage
of high quality investments and optimize net earnings. The Trust is governed by a six (6) member
Board of Trustees and employs an investment manager, custodian banks, legal counsel and
administrator to carry out the functions of the Trust.
The Trust administration’s primary role is in providing customer service and being the main
contact for our clients. The Trust will act as the liaison between clients, investment manager, and
custodian bank. The Trust staff will handle all transaction concerns, client inquiries, and general
reporting.

Description of Required Services
The successful respondent will be responsible for providing custodial banking services pertaining
to the Trust’s two investment funds, which carry a combined balance of around 1.5 billion in
assets. The custodian will hold monies and assets of the Trust while adhering to the terms and
conditions set forth by the Trust investment policy or by the Trust’s Investment Advisor (as of
2017, Payden & Rygel). The Trust and Investment Advisor may direct the custodian to invest,
trade, or otherwise dispose of custodial property, including the distribution of such custodial
property to individual participants of the Trust.
The respondent must be a custodian bank, certified by the State of Florida, Bureau of Collateral
Securities, Division of Treasury, as a “Qualified Public Depository” pursuant to the provision of
the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act as described in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. If
selected, the respondent must adequately perform required duties specified in this Request for
Proposal. The respondent must be able to provide full-service web-based banking products and
balance reporting services. These products and services are mainly for the benefit of the
participants, allowing them ready access to monies held in the funds. This includes incoming wire
transfers with same day availability unless otherwise directed. The respondent must have the
ability to export or download account balance reports on a regular basis that include but are not
limited to the following; Fund Portfolio Analysis, Trial Balance, Net and Gross Yield, Rule 2A-7
Compliance, and Net Asset Value.
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Portfolio Characteristics
The Trust currently manages two portfolio funds each different in structure to address particular
needs of the participants.
The Day-to-Day Fund is a money market 2A-7 like account that aims to provide investors with
liquidity. The share price remains stable, set at one dollar ($1), and provides as high a level of
dividend income as is consistent with preservation of principal and liquidity. The sector allocation
in this fund is comprised mainly of US Government securities (US Treasuries, agencies, and
repurchase agreements) with the remaining securities being commercial paper, certificates of
deposit, short-term corporate bonds, and other low duration securities. The Day-to-Day fund
typically has a high amount of transaction volume to accommodate for the daily cash needs of
participants.
The Short Term Bond Fund is a variable net asset value government investment pool that seeks to
maintain safety of principal and maximize available yield through a balance of quality and
diversification. The securities in this fund are limited to a maximum duration of five years. The
sector allocation of this fund is similar to the securities found in the Day-to-Day fund but does not
include repurchase agreements and does include long-term corporate bonds. The Short Term
Bond Fund has a smaller amount of transaction volume. Most of the monies held in the Short
Term Bond fund remain invested for an extended period, although there are generally several
transactions within a month. In the event of a large withdrawal transaction ($10 million +) the
Trust requires our investors to provide 72-hour advance notice policy. This policy is to allow the
Investment Advisor (Payden & Rygel) sufficient time to conduct transactions for the trade. The
respondent will need a system in place to account for large transactions while adhering to the
Trust policy. The Trust operations department is able to work with the respondent to determine an
adequate system to uphold the policy.
Due to the different volume between the funds, the respondent and Trust will work together in
determining an even distribution of costs.
Portfolio Criteria
A respondent will need to have experience in managing multiple large government or similar
investment pools. Expanding on the characteristics aforementioned, the Trust manages two funds
that carry a balance of around $1.5 billion in assets. The Short Term Bond Fund carries a balance
of $1 billion in assets, while the Day-to-Day fund carries a balance of $500 million in assets. In
the Short Term Bond Fund, there are around 100 accounts, while the Day-to-Day Fund has
around 30 accounts. The amount of monthly transactions between the two accounts differ widely
due to the goals of the funds. The Short Term Bond Fund averages about five transactions per
month, while the Day-to Day Fund averages about 31 transactions per month. Additionally, there
are about 22 principal paydowns across both accounts on average per month.
The respondent must have experience in handling accounts with a similar profile.

Transition Assistance provided to the Custodian
The Trust Operations manager and staff will work alongside the successful respondent to assist in
providing information and documentation pertaining to account creation and completing
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transactions. This includes any necessary documentation and support needed throughout the
process to complete the transition in the proposed timeline.
The Trust will be in contact with all service providers associated in both funds to ensure the
transition is a seamless process.

Required Services
The respondent will provide, at a minimum, monthly bank statements for all fund accounts
through the last working day of each month to the Trust. Statements shall be available
electronically through a secure web site within five business days.
Daily Reports (Fund Portfolio Analysis (schedule of investments), Trial Balance, Net and Gross
Yield, Net Asset Value Report and Reconciliation, etc.) must be provided by email at the end of
each day to cover previous day account information. Every Wednesday, an additional Amortized
Cost report will be provided by email to fund administration (in order to comply with Standard
and Poor’s requirements).
For our clients, it is expected that they will be provided with online access to their accounts. This
access should allow clients of the Trust to view balances, receive statements, and conduct
transactions in accordance with the Trust Investment Policy set forth. It is expected that clients
also receive monthly statements detailing balance information, dividends received, and
transaction history pertaining to their individual accounts. As aforementioned, the Trust will
provide any necessary assistance in account creation to make this possible.
Compensation
Compensation for services listed in this RFP will be paid out monthly by the Trust. Payment is
sent at the beginning of each month to compensate for previous month’s expenses.
Schedule
It is the intent of the Trust to select and appoint a custodial bank by August 1, 2017. The
expectation for the completion of this process is scheduled below. Please note that the timeframes
for the transition are tentative and subject to change based on the capabilities or timeline provided
by the elected bank. If the respondent’s timeline or schedule is significantly different from the
proposed dates, please specify in particular the reason for this in the RFP submittal.
The successful respondent will work alongside our existing custodial banks during the transition
process in bringing in both funds. The Trust estimates that the transition process for both funds
will take appropriately three (3) months. The estimation is subject to change based on the
successful respondent’s timeline.
In the first month of the transition, the successful respondent is expected to form a conversion
team, receive client contacts, schedule recurring client calls and, with current service provider,
finalize conversion date, and identify cost basis needs. The Trust will provide notice to current
service provider, provide all applications, tax forms, statements, custodial agreements, and
establish TLS connection between successful respondent and Investment Advisor at this time.
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The successful respondent will be expected to review current client reports, review dealer
agreements, finalize conversion requirements, and complete all applicable checklists and forms
during the second month.
The third month of the transition will revolve around the successful respondent confirming and
coordinating final calls and procedures before going live with services originally proposed.
May 2, 2017
May 22, 2017
June 2, 2017
June 12, 2017
July 10, 2017
July 27, 2017
July 28, 2017
August 1, 2017:
November 1, 2017:

RFP posted
Question submissions due to Administrator
Answers posted to website
RFP submissions due to Administrator
Selection Committee meeting
Board of Trustees Meeting- recommendations to
Board
Selection of Firm; response to all submitting firms
Start Date of Transition Process
Completion of Transition Process

Proposal Form
Banks submitting proposals shall respond completely to the questions listed on the following
page. All proposals shall be submitted electronically to Bryant Gries at BGries@flclerks.com by
5:00 PM EST on Monday, June 12, 2017.

Evaluation procedure
Proposals submitted in response to this RFP will be reviewed in light of the evaluation criteria set
forth on the attached "Questionnaire", which are not in order of importance. The criteria that
prospective bids will be evaluated on are shown below. Proposals deemed to be fully responsive
to this RFP will be reviewed for additional information in the selection process.
The Trust reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any failure to comply
with the terms of this RFP. Selection will be made in the sole and absolute discretion of the Trust.

Selection Criteria
Each proposal will be evaluated on a scale of 1 to 100 based on the responses to the
Questionnaire.
1. Corporate Background – 20 points
a. Strategic Relationship
b. Background
2. Account Service – 30 points
a. Relationship Management
b. Trades & Settlements
c. Income Collection
d. Cash Management Services
3. Technology – 25 points
a. Technology & Systems
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4. Cost & Timeline – 25 points
a. Fees & Contracts
b. Timeline

Questions
Questions regarding this RFP or the Trust shall be made in writing and directed to Bryant Gries,
Trust Services Manager. Mr. Gries can be reached at BGries@flclerks.com.
All questions must be received electronically by May 22. All questions and answers will be
posted on our website: www.FloridaTrustOnline.com by June 2nd.
Once the RFP is issued by the Trust, respondents are prohibited from contacting any member of
the Selection Committee or Trust regarding the subject matter of this RFP other than the contact
stated above. Doing so shall disqualify the firm/individual from further consideration.
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CUSTODIAL SERVICES QUESTIONNAIRE
STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIP
1.

Please describe in some detail the bank’s commitment and strategic plans relative to
custody and other related value added services, both domestic and foreign.

2.

What are the characteristics that distinguish your organization from other custodians?

3.

Please describe your bank’s philosophical and strategic views on relationships with major
clients?

4.

What is your organization’s commitment to customer service?

5.

Are there any aspects of your business that would affect your ability to service our
business in the long term and/or influence your financial stability?

6.

Why do most clients select your firm

BACKGROUND

Please provide the following information regarding your bank.
•

Location/address of all custodial operations

•

Total assets under custody broken down between domestic by security type.

•

How long have custody services been provided for government funds by your
organization? List three major mutual fund clients as references and provide their assets
under custody broken down between domestic by security type. Please include one that
has gone through the transition process in the last three years.

•

Do you use any domestic sub-custodians for either safekeeping or trade settlement? If
yes, please list all sub custodians and the nature and extent of their services used.

•

Please list the depositories and similar financial network institutions with which your
bank has an association and related information such as how your bank interacts with
such organizations.

•

What are your long term and short-term debt ratings?

•

Please provide copies of your most recent audited annual report and any other relevant
financial information i.e. SAS70.

•

Please provide a copy of your external auditor’s opinion on your internal controls and
procedures.

•

Describe the insurance coverage of your firm.

RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT
1.

Do you have a dedicated group to address the need of our business? Will you commit
key personnel to an ongoing tenure on our account?

2.

Do your clients typically direct all inquiries to this group or do they go specifically to the
department in the bank handling the transaction?
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3.

How many relationships are assigned to each client service representative? (I.e. dedicated
team referred to above)

4.

How many other investment managers and accounts does our primary contact also cover?

5.

What type of regular communication do you provide your clients related to industry
issues, new products and services, etc.? What is the frequency of such communications?

6.

Does your bank maintain a client inquiry log with the details and follow-up of inquiries?
What is the average turnaround time for an inquiry?

TRADES AND SETTLEMENTS
1.

Can your bank provide daily reports to us at the start of the day (7:00 am) that
summarizes the previous day’s activity? What type of daily reports will you provide?

2.

Please describe your cash availability policies.

3.

What is your cutoff time for cash flows?

4.

Can your systems provide on-line access to information on securities pending registration
or out-to-transfer?

5.

What are your bank’s standard deadlines for receiving trades from clients by settlement
category?

6.

Does your bank affirm trades for its customers, and do you provide timely reporting of
trade affirmation with exception reports? At what time are these reports available?
Please describe your process.

7.

Please describe your policies on both buys and sells regarding contractual and actual
settlements. Also, describe your policies pertaining to failed transactions and availability
of funds. What are the bank’s procedures to monitor fails?

8.

Please describe the process used to adhere to the Trust 48-hour advance notice policy.
How would your bank accommodate the request?

INCOME COLLECTION
1.

Please describe your income collection and crediting policies for each of the following
security types by availability date:
•
•
•

Date of receipt
Contractual payable date
Payable date + 1










Security Types
Money market instruments
Government and Agency securities
CMOs
Interest and principal only securities
Mortgage Backed securities
Taxable instruments
Tax-Exempt instruments
Certificates of Deposits
Other?
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2.

When are receipts and payments made in federal funds and clearinghouse funds available
or charged against our account?

3.

What is the bank’s procedure for claiming past due interest and dividends?

CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICES
1.

What is your policy on fund overdrafts caused by the client vs. the bank and related
compensation for such overdrafts?

2.

Are overdrafts netted against collected balanced for the month for overdraft charge
calculations? Can overdrafts be made up in collected balances?

3.

The majority of our funds currently sweep into a money market fund. Can you do the
same?

4.

There might be un-invested cash from time to time due to late cash flow notification.
What is your earnings credit policy and how is it calculated?

TECHNOLOGY AND SYSTEMS
1.

One of our goals is to select a custodian bank that not only has “state-of-the-art” systems
but also a commitment from senior management to continue to seek and implement
advances in technology and desire to be amongst the leaders in the industry. Please
describe how selecting your bank would satisfy this aspect of our search.

2.

Please describe some of the custody related technological advances you have
implemented in the past two years and if possible, what advances you are planning to
implement next year. Please indicate if the changes were client requested and if so, the
time required to implement the change.

3.

Can your bank accommodate automated transmission of transactions both to and from
clients, including buys, sells, maturities, income and expense payments, and ABS trade
files? Describe the flexibility of your systems to meet client needs.

4.

What types of data will your automated interface supply regarding income or trade
settlements?

5.

Does your on-line access supply real time custody information (location of securities,
out-for-transfer status, etc.)?

6.

Please itemize and describe your bank’s current method(s) to communicate information
to clients. Please include all types of information flow including trading activity and
reports, corporate actions, income collection, settlements and all other cash or non-cash
activity.

7.

Please describe your customer support organization regarding technology. Do your
clients each have one contact for all questions or are they referred to various areas
depending on the issue? How are problems regarding data feeds handled?

8.

Does your bank use an automated feed for Variable Rate Demand Notes? For ratings? If
so, do your clients have access to the information? Please describe the sources and the
timeliness of the updates.
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FEES AND CONTRACTS
1.

Please provide a proposed fee structure including fees that are based on assets,
transaction charges, and any other out of pockets. Specifically identify all charges the
funds may incur outside of asset and transaction charges

2.

Please describe your standard billing procedure.

3.

For how long will you guarantee the fee schedules?

4.

Please outline any unusual practices or requirements for custody contracts, if any.

TIMELINE
1.

Please provide an overview of your proposed transition timeline.
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